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 OFFERING STATEMENT 



 OFFERING SUMMARY 

 Issuer Name  PBV Holdings Inc 
 Doing Business As  Velum FermentaƟon 
 Offering Minimum  $25,000 | 6,250 shares of Series A ConverƟble Preferred Stock 
 Offering Maximum  $1,000,0000 | 250,000 shares of Series A ConverƟble Preferred Stock 
 Security Type  Series A ConverƟble Preferred Stock 
 Pre-Money ValuaƟon  $6,025,000 | $4 per share 
 Shares Sold  Up to 250,000 shares of Series A ConverƟble Preferred Stock 

 COMPANY OVERVIEW 

 Velum FermentaƟon is a craŌ brewery in the South Side Flats neighborhood in PiƩsburgh, PA bringing 
 new life to the ground floor of the old Duquesne Brewing Co. boƩling building. Velum encompasses 
 35,000 sqŌ of open industrial building space and resides beneath Ascend PiƩsburgh, a local 
 well-established climbing gym. Off the main strip of Southside, Carson Street, Velum promises a great 
 community-driven and family friendly place for all to enjoy. They will serve an array of premium craŌ 
 beers, from tradiƟonal lagers and IPAs, barrel-aged and wild sours, and seasonal pours. Velum will not 
 only rely on taproom and to-go sales, but will uƟlize wholesale and contract brewing as added revenue 
 streams. 

 The construcƟon of Velum FermentaƟon has been split into two phases. Phase 1 consists of a custom 
 built 36-seat taproom to serve beer and other local wine and spirits made in PA. The taproom shares the 
 space with a 30 bbl producƟon brew house and 5 fermentors allowing for a maximum capacity of 3,800 
 bbls/year. The taproom and the capacity of the brewhouse will allow Velum to grow the business quickly. 
 Velum has exciƟng plans for Phase 2 as there will be a 15,000 sqŌ taproom that will feature indoor and 
 outdoor seaƟng, arcade games, live music, art installaƟons, private event space, and other special 
 ameniƟes. This expansion also includes addiƟonal fermentors bringing the total producƟon capacity up 
 to 30,000 bbl/year. 

 Company History 
 The dream of starƟng a brewery was born in 2008 while Nathan was working as a lab tech in Scranton 
 Pennsylvania. InspiraƟon struck when he and some friends decided to make beer with a simple 
 homebrew kit. Although the beer didn’t turn out to be a parƟcularly pleasant ale, his passion was 
 spurred. Shortly aŌer that brief foray into brewing, he decided to take the chance and enrolled in the 
 Master brewers program at the University of California, Davis Campus. AŌer finishing his program, he 
 immediately launched into a decade-long journey into the brewing industry, taking in every experience 
 he could find. AŌer this tenure as a professional brewer, Nathan felt he had gained enough experience to 
 pursue his original dream of building a successful craŌ brewery. 

 Velum FermentaƟon was started in 2019 when Nathan decided to move back to PiƩsburgh. PiƩsburgh is 
 an ideal place to build a large brewery as there is a budding craŌ beer scene, with many excellent 
 breweries across the city and a growing community of beer enthusiasts. The search for a building to 
 accommodate his vision of a large producƟon facility and community entertainment hub was a 
 challenge. But, with the assistance of a local business owner, Nathan found the perfect space in the 
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 South Side neighborhood. Once the locaƟon was set, Velum was born and construcƟon started 
 immediately. 

 Unfortunately, in early 2020 as construcƟon was in full swing and Velum had great momentum, the 
 world was upended by a global pandemic. As with most businesses under construcƟon, operaƟons 
 ceased and Velum waited for the world to open up again. While construcƟon was halted, Nathan uƟlized 
 this Ɵme to reevaluate the direcƟon of the company and decided to split the build into two phases. 
 Phase 1 became the “Get to Beer” phase, and Phase 2 would become the larger taproom and producƟon 
 expansion that was originally planned. During this Ɵme, he also brought Jenna, his sister-in-law, into the 
 project for her unique experience and skills, as well as their mutual enthusiasm and shared vision. 

 Velum was able to survive the shutdown and, with the help of Enterprise Bank and the Progress Fund, 
 secure SBA financing for Phase 1. They are now approaching the compleƟon of Phase 1 and will be 
 opening the doors to the public. Although repeatedly faced with significant hurdles, the Velum team 
 conƟnues to square up and overcome challenges, always looking forward towards the original dream! 

 COMPANY ELIGIBILITY 

 Name of issuer: PBV Holdings Inc 
 State of OrganizaƟon: Pennsylvania 
 Date Company Was Formed: 1/29/2021 
 Type of Company: CorporaƟon 
 Physical Address: 421 Lamar Ave, PiƩsburgh, PA 15221 
 Web Address: velumfermentaƟon.com 
 # of Employees: 2 
 Qualified Third Party: North Capital Private SecuriƟes 

 The Issuer cerƟfies that all of the following statements are true: 

 ●  The Issuer is organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the 
 United States or the District of Columbia. 

 ●  The Issuer is not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to SecƟon 13 or 
 SecƟon 15(d) of the SecuriƟes Exchange Act of 1934. 

 ●  The Issuer is not an investment company registered or required to be registered under 
 the Investment Company Act of 1940. 

 ●  The Issuer is not ineligible to rely on this exempƟon under SecƟon 4(a)(6) of the 
 SecuriƟes Act as a result of a disqualificaƟon specified in Rule 503(a) of RegulaƟon 
 Crowdfunding. 

 ●  The Issuer has filed with the Commission and provided to investors, to the extent 
 required, the ongoing annual reports required by RegulaƟon Crowdfunding during the 
 two years immediately preceding the filing of this offering statement. 

 ●  The Issuer is not a development stage company that (a) has no specific business plan or 
 (b) has indicated that its business plan is to engage in a merger or acquisiƟon with an 
 unidenƟfied company or companies. 

 ●  The Issuer, or any of its predecessors, has never failed to comply with the ongoing 
 reporƟng requirements of Rule 202 of RegulaƟon Crowdfunding. 
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 OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 

 Company Ownership 

 The above is the only ownership outstanding for the company. The ownership interests of a Pennsylvania 
 CorporaƟon give the owner the right to share in the profits of the company. 

 Key Persons of Issuer 
 Below is a list of the key officers of the Issuer along with their principal occupaƟon, office, date of 
 joining, and responsibiliƟes for the past three years. 

 Nathan McLaughlin 
 Employer: Velum FermentaƟon (PBV Holdings Inc) 

 Chief ExecuƟve Officer at Velum FermentaƟon, PiƩsburgh, PA (2019 - Current) 
 -  Business development including securing financial investment, management of all operaƟonal 

 accounts, partnerships, legal, and growth strategies. 

 Head Brewer at Velum FermentaƟon, PiƩsburgh, PA (2022 - Current) 
 -  Recipe development and implementaƟon, management of producƟon facility operaƟons and 

 employees 
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 Lead developer and Head Brewer at PiƩ Street Brewing, Greenville, NC (2016 - 2019) 
 -  Developed brewery from start-up to compleƟon, building planning, brewhouse acquisiƟon, 

 product development, and employee management 

 Nathan is a Master Brewer with 12 years of experience in the craŌ brewing industry. He has spent his 
 career honing his skills in the art of fermentaƟon and building a reputaƟon for brewing award-winning 
 beer in a diverse selecƟon of styles including: lagers, stouts, IPAs, and sours. He has brewed for big-name 
 craŌ breweries such as Deschutes Brewery and Victory Brewing Company, giving him special knowledge 
 of large-scale producƟon processes and quality control. AddiƟonally, he has worked for smaller 
 breweries including Kulshan Brewing Co and PiƩ Street Brewing, the laƩer he helped build from the 
 ground up, both of which taught him the importance of personalized products tailored to the local 
 customer base. Along with creaƟng high-quality beer, Nathan is dedicated to community, outreach, and 
 educaƟon. He has always served as a source of knowledge to his co-workers, as well as serving as a 
 faculty of brew science at the Nash Community College. Nathan took the iniƟaƟve to start a brewing 
 internship program to support individuals seeking new industry opportuniƟes. Nathan hopes to build 
 Velum into a place for the community to share in his passion for fermentaƟon. He has aspiraƟons to start 
 programs for barrel-aging, spontaneous fermentaƟon, and other specialty styles. 

 Jenna McLaughlin 
 Employer: Velum FermentaƟon (PBV Holdings Inc) 

 Chief OperaƟons Officer at Velum FermentaƟon, PiƩsburgh, PA (February 2021 - Current) 
 -  Develop and manage operaƟons for Velum’s construcƟon on the business side and the build out 

 of the building and the taproom. Perform all duƟes that are required to open and operate the 
 brewery. 

 Molecular Department Director at Exact ScienƟfic Services, Bellingham, WA (2016 – July 2020) 
 -  Manage everyday operaƟons of the molecular department including customer service, sample 

 analysis, project management, employee management, interdepartmental communicaƟon and 
 research and development. 

 Jenna is a fermentaƟon nerd with 13 years in the food and beverage industry. She has a cosmopolitan 
 background including front-of-house service, food prep, events management, as well as over 7 years 
 experience in the food science industry, working as the Director of the Molecular Biology Department 
 and Head of Research and Development. Jenna has a passion for seeking out and creaƟng exciƟng new 
 foods and drinks to share with friends! Gardening, fishing, woodworking, mushroom foraging and board 
 games are some of her hobbies. At Velum, Jenna serves as the chief operaƟons officer (COO), applying 
 her industry experience and intensity to the assortment of challenges that are faced when starƟng a 
 brewery. Along with serving as the COO, Jenna plans to build an R&D laboratory within Velum, the ‘Brew 
 Lab’, to feed her love of science and ensure the best quality products off the tap. 

 ANTICIPATED BUSINESS PLAN 

 While the paired down taproom (Phase 1) will be operaƟng during the construcƟon of the large taproom 
 and producƟon space expansion (Phase 2), it is crucial to have operaƟonal cost buffers to withstand the 
 ever-changing market and world condiƟons. The operaƟons budget for this project will give Velum the 
 financial support needed to begin and maintain producƟon, hire much needed employees and grow the 
 business with sales and markeƟng. 
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 The Phase 2 expansion budget is divided into two main goals: producƟon expansion and onsite customer 
 experience. Velum is currently uƟlizing a quarter of the available producƟon space and less than a tenth 
 of the available taproom space. Having readily available producƟon space for expansion allows for 
 efficient and conƟnual growth without the need for acquiring new buildings, licenses, or permits. 
 Expanding into the unused producƟon space will increase producƟon capabiliƟes by 10-fold. 

 For the customer facing side of the expansion, a 15,000 sqŌ taproom will be built adding large open 
 seaƟng areas, comfortable low seaƟng for a relaxed experience, a cafe area that will double as a live 
 music stage, a large arcade and indoor yard games such as bocce ball courts and cruise ship style 
 shuffleboard. This construcƟon phase will also include galley-style stall kitchens that will provide various 
 food opƟons. The funding for this phase of the project will vastly improve the customer experience, 
 bringing patrons from near and far but will also provide a large venue for beer sales  . 

 Below is a summary of the Company’s expected use of funds. Funds raised in this offering will be used in 
 descending priority order. 

 Item  Cost 
 OperaƟons costs  $200,000 
 Canning line upgrade  $150,000 
 FermentaƟon capacity 
 increase  $200,000 
 Foeder Sour Program  $80,000 
 R&D laboratory and quality 
 control  $50,000 
 Furniture and fixtures  $100,000 
 Arcade games  $80,000 
 MarkeƟng budget  $50,000 
 Stall kitchens  $90,000 
 Total  $1,000,000 

 RISK FACTORS 

 A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you 
 can afford to lose your enƟre investment. In making an investment decision, investors must rely on 
 their own examinaƟon of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks 
 involved. These securiƟes have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securiƟes 
 commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authoriƟes have not passed upon the 
 accuracy or adequacy of this document. 

 The U.S. SecuriƟes and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securiƟes offered 
 or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering 
 document or literature. 
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 These securiƟes are offered under an exempƟon from registraƟon; however, the U.S. SecuriƟes and 
 Exchange Commission has not made an independent determinaƟon that these securiƟes are exempt 
 from registraƟon. 

 You Might Lose Your Money 
 When  you  buy  a  cerƟficate  of  deposit  from  a  bank,  the  Federal  government  (through  the  FDIC) 
 guarantees  you  will  get  your  money  back.  Buying  a  Note  is  not  like  that  at  all.  The  ability  of  the  Company 
 to  make  the  payments  you  expect,  and  ulƟmately  to  give  you  your  money  back,  depends  on  a  number  of 
 factors, including many beyond our control. 

 COVID-19 Might Have a NegaƟve Material Effect on the Company 
 This  offering  is  being  launched  at  a  Ɵme  when  the  COVID-19  pandemic  is  requiring  the  closure  of  many 
 businesses,  large  and  small.  The  effects  COVID-19  may  have  on  economic  acƟvity  are  likely  substanƟal 
 and  unknown;  there  is  no  guaranty  the  Company  will  not  suffer  material  negaƟve  effects  as  a  direct  or 
 indirect result of the pandemic. 

 Limited OperaƟng History 
 The Company has been operaƟng only since 2022, a limited history for prospecƟve investors to consider. 

 CompeƟƟon 
 The  market  in  which  we  operate  is  highly  compeƟƟve.  The  Company  competes  with  many  other 
 businesses,  both  large  and  small,  on  the  basis  of  quality  and  price  of  products,  locaƟon  and  customer 
 experience.  Changes  in  customer  preference  away  from  the  Company’s  core  business  or  the  inability  to 
 compete  successfully  against  other  compeƟtors  could  negaƟvely  affect  the  Company’s  financial 
 performance. 

 RegulaƟons 
 The  ownership  and  operaƟon  of  food  operaƟons  are  subject  to  a  number  of  laws  and  regulaƟons. 
 Complying with these laws and regulaƟons could prove costly. 

 Licensing Risk 
 The  Company  may  face  changes  in  the  state  and  federal  laws  in  connecƟon  to  any  licensing  required  for 
 the  sale  of  its  products.  Such  changes  would  require  the  dedicaƟon  of  Company  resources  to  address  or 
 amend its current operaƟons which may adversely affect its business strategy or profitability. 

 Interest Rate Might Not Adequately Compensate For Risk 
 TheoreƟcally,  the  interest  rate  paid  by  a  company  should  compensate  the  creditor  for  the  level  of  risk  the 
 creditor  is  assuming.  There  is  no  certainty  that  the  interest  rate  on  your  Note  will  compensate  you 
 adequately for the level of risk. 

 No Right to ParƟcipate in Management 
 As  the  owner  of  a  Note,  you  will  not  have  the  right  to  control  the  Company  in  any  way  or  to  parƟcipate  in 
 its  management.  You  should  invest  (buy  a  Note)  only  if  you  are  willing  to  rely  completely  on  the 
 Company’s management team. 
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 Reliance On Management Team 
 Like  almost  all  small  businesses,  the  Company  relies  exclusively  on  the  abiliƟes  of  its  management  team. 
 Should  any  of  them  die,  leave  the  Company,  or  become  ill  for  a  long  period  of  Ɵme,  the  Company  would 
 be damaged and might not repay your Note. 

 Limited Products And Services 
 Most  small,  local  businesses  sell  only  one  or  two  products  or  services,  making  them  vulnerable  to 
 changes in technology and/or customer preferences. 

 Supplier Risk 
 The  Company  relies  on  third-party  suppliers  for  the  materials  used  in  the  manufacture  of  its  products.  If 
 any  of  these  suppliers  changes  the  pricing,  distribuƟon,  terms  of  service,  or  relaƟonship  with  the 
 Company,  this  could  materially  affect  its  business  and/or  profitability.  Factors  outside  of  the  Company’s 
 control,  including  general  market  condiƟons,  may  affect  its  relaƟonship  with  these  suppliers.  In  addiƟon, 
 its  ability  to  meet  the  obligaƟons  of  its  customers  may  be  adversely  affected  if  its  suppliers  fail  to  comply 
 with agreed-upon services or quality standards in a cost-effecƟve or Ɵmely manner. 

 Risk of Economic Downturn 
 The  products  the  Company  sells  are  luxuries,  not  necessiƟes.  In  the  event  of  a  recession  or  other 
 economic downturn, customers might curtail their purchase of our products. 

 Environmental Risk 
 The  Company  is  subject  to  the  risk  of  environmental  liability  and  limitaƟons  on  operaƟons  due  to 
 environmental  laws  and  regulaƟons.  The  Company  is  subject  to  extensive  federal,  state,  and  local 
 environmental,  health  and  safety  regulaƟons.  The  risks  of  substanƟal  costs  and  liabiliƟes  related  to 
 compliance  with  these  laws  and  regulaƟons  is  an  inherent  part  of  the  Company’s  business.  Future 
 condiƟons  may  develop  or  be  discovered  that  create  substanƟal  environmental  compliance  or 
 remediaƟon liabiliƟes and costs. 

 Consumer Products Liability Risk 
 The  Company  produces  food  products.  If  these  products  make  customers  ill  due  to  spoilage  or  in  some 
 other  way  result  in  food-borne  illness,  the  Company  could  be  subject  to  legal  liability  if  these  customers 
 sue the Company and the resulƟng liability is not covered by insurance. 

 Price Risk 
 The  Company  competes  in  an  industry  with  a  commodity  product  where  the  Company  may  not  have 
 control  of  the  prices  it  will  receive  for  its  product  or  the  prices  it  must  pay  for  inputs.  Price  uncertainty 
 may negaƟvely impact the Company’s business and financial situaƟon. 

 Use of Funds Risk 
 At  the  discreƟon  of  the  Company’s  execuƟve  management  team,  funds  raised  in  this  offering  may  be 
 used differently than specifically outlined in this document’s Use of Funds secƟon. 

 Personnel Risk 
 The  Company  uses  human  personnel  to  produce  its  product.  Accidents,  illnesses,  death,  divorce,  or  lack 
 of producƟvity could negaƟvely impact the ability of personnel and, therefore, the business. 

 Lack Of AccounƟng Controls 
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 Larger  companies  typically  have  in  place  strict  accounƟng  controls.  Smaller  companies  like  the  Company 
 lack these controls, exposing themselves to addiƟonal risk. 

 ReputaƟon Risk 
 The  success  of  the  Company  depends  on  the  reputaƟon  of  its  brand.  Adverse  publicity  concerning  the 
 Company’s products or the Company itself could negaƟvely impact the future of its business. 

 The Company Might Need More Capital 
 The  Company  might  need  to  raise  more  capital  in  the  future  to  expand  its  operaƟons,  buy  property  and 
 equipment,  hire  drivers  and  other  personnel,  market  its  products  and  services,  pay  overhead  and  general 
 administraƟve  expenses,  or  a  variety  of  other  reasons.  There  is  no  assurance  that  addiƟonal  capital  will 
 be  available  when  needed,  or  that  it  will  be  available  on  terms  that  are  not  adverse  to  your  interests  as 
 an  investor.  If  the  Company  is  unable  to  obtain  addiƟonal  funding  when  needed,  it  could  be  forced  to 
 delay its business plan or even cease operaƟons altogether. 

 Future Investors Might Have Superior Rights 
 If  the  Company  needs  more  capital  in  the  future,  it  might  borrow  money  and/or  sell  stock,  and  the  new 
 investors  might  have  rights  superior  to  those  of  an  investor  owning  a  Note.  For  example,  they  might  have 
 the  right  to  be  paid  before  you  are,  to  receive  larger  distribuƟons,  to  have  a  greater  voice  in 
 management, or otherwise. 

 Inability To Sell Your Shares 
 The  law  prohibits  you  from  selling  your  shares  (except  in  certain  very  limited  circumstances)  for  one  year 
 aŌer  you  acquire  it.  Even  aŌer  that  one-year  period,  a  host  of  Federal  and  State  securiƟes  laws  may  limit 
 or  restrict  your  ability  to  sell  your  securiƟes.  Even  if  you  are  permiƩed  to  sell,  you  will  likely  have 
 difficulty  finding  a  buyer  because  there  will  be  no  established  market.  Given  these  factors,  you  should  be 
 prepared to hold your shares for the long term. 

 LimitaƟon of Individual Rights in Event of Default 
 In  the  event  of  a  default  under  the  Notes,  an  individual  investor  will  not  have  the  right  to  enforce  his,  her 
 or  its  rights  –  for  example,  by  bringing  a  lawsuit.  Instead,  the  investors  will  appoint  a  representaƟve  using 
 a  procedure  set  forth  in  the  Note  Purchase  Agreement.  It’s  possible  that  the  investors  as  a  group  will 
 appoint  a  representaƟve  you  don’t  like,  or  that  the  representaƟve  will  do  things  you  believe  are  wrong  or 
 misguided.  Once  a  default  has  occurred  and  a  representaƟve  has  been  appointed,  all  the  expenses  of  the 
 representaƟve must be paid before any further payments are made with respect to the Notes. 

 The Owners Could Be Bad People Or Do Bad Things 
 The  owners  of  the  Company  could  be  dishonest  and  take  your  money.  Even  people  who  are  very  honest 
 someƟmes  do  dishonest  things  in  desperate  situaƟons  –  for  example,  when  their  company  is  on  the  line, 
 or  they’re  going  through  a  divorce  or  other  stressful  life  event.  It  is  possible  that  the  management  of  the 
 Company, or an employee, would steal from or otherwise cheat the Company, and you. 

 Conflict Of Interest 
 In  many  ways  your  interests  and  the  interests  of  the  Company’s  management  team  will  coincide:  you  all 
 want  the  Company  to  be  as  successful  as  possible.  However,  your  interests  might  be  in  conflict  in  other 
 important areas, including these: 

 INTENDED FOR REVIEW BY POTENTIAL INVESTORS ON HONEYCOMB CREDIT ONLY. DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE 



 ●  You  might  want  to  keep  the  compensaƟon  of  managers  low,  while  managers  want  to  make  as 
 much as they can. 

 ●  You  might  want  the  Company  to  act  conservaƟvely  to  conserve  its  cash,  while  the  management 
 team might want to grow more quickly. 

 ●  You  might  want  the  Company  to  look  out  for  your  interests,  while  the  management  team  might 
 subordinate your interests to the interests of employees, other investors, or others. 

 ●  The  lawyers  who  prepared  the  legal  documents  represent  the  interests  of  the  Company,  not  the 
 interests of investors. 

 No RegistraƟon Under SecuriƟes Laws 
 The  Notes  will  not  be  registered  with  the  SEC  or  the  securiƟes  regulator  of  any  State.  Hence,  neither  the 
 Company  nor  the  Notes  are  subject  to  the  same  degree  of  regulaƟon  and  scruƟny  as  if  they  were 
 registered. 

 Incomplete Offering InformaƟon 
 Title  III  does  not  require  us  to  provide  you  with  all  the  informaƟon  that  would  be  required  in  some  other 
 kinds  of  securiƟes  offerings,  such  as  a  public  offering  of  shares  (for  example,  publicly-traded  firms  must 
 generally  provide  investors  with  quarterly  and  annual  financial  statements  that  have  been  audited  by  an 
 independent  accounƟng  firm).  Although  Title  III  does  require  extensive  informaƟon,  as  described  above, 
 it is possible that you would make a different decision if you had more informaƟon. 

 Lack Of Ongoing InformaƟon 
 The  Company  will  be  required  to  provide  some  informaƟon  to  investors  for  at  least  one  year  following 
 the  offering.  However,  this  informaƟon  is  far  more  limited  than  the  informaƟon  that  would  be  required 
 of  a  publicly-reporƟng  company;  and  the  Company  will  be  allowed  to  stop  providing  annual  informaƟon 
 in certain circumstances. 

 The  Company  is  Not  Subject  to  the  Corporate  Governance  Requirements  Of  NaƟonal  SecuriƟes 
 Exchanges 
 Any  company  whose  securiƟes  are  listed  on  a  naƟonal  stock  exchange  (for  example,  the  New  York  Stock 
 Exchange)  is  subject  to  a  number  of  rules  about  corporate  governance  that  are  intended  to  protect 
 investors.  For  example,  the  major  U.S.  stock  exchanges  require  listed  companies  to  have  an  audit 
 commiƩee  made  up  enƟrely  of  independent  members  of  the  board  of  directors  (i.e.,  directors  with  no 
 material  outside  relaƟonships  with  the  company  or  management),  which  is  responsible  for  monitoring 
 the  company’s  compliance  with  the  law.  The  Company  will  not  be  required  to  implement  these  and 
 other investor protecƟons. 

 Cost of Enforcement 
 If  the  Company  defaulted,  investors  would  have  to  engage  lawyers  and  possibly  other  third  parƟes  to 
 enforce their rights. The cost of enforcement could be prohibiƟve. 

 Company ValuaƟon 
 The  valuaƟon  for  the  offering  was  established  by  the  Company.  Unlike  listed  companies  that  are  valued 
 publicly  through  market-driven  stock  prices,  the  valuaƟon  of  private  companies,  especially  startups,  is 
 difficult to assess and you may risk overpaying for your investment. 
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 Other Lenders Could Have Superior Rights 
 The  Company  will  take  out  other  loans.  In  itself  this  is  not  risky,  but  these  lenders  will  likely  have  a  claim 
 to  collateral  superior  to  the  collateral  claimed  by  the  Note.  For  example,  the  lenders  might  have  a  claim 
 to  the  future  cash  flows  or  equity  ownership  of  the  Company,  or  the  equipment  owned  by  the  Company 
 whereas  the  Note  has  a  claim  to  the  equipment  purchased  with  its  own  proceeds.  Moreover,  the  lenders 
 might  have  clauses  in  their  lending  agreements  with  the  Company  that  compel  the  Company  to  pay 
 them  first  over  other  lenders.  If  the  Company  runs  out  of  cash,  and  has  a  choice  to  pay  the  other  lenders 
 or the Holders of the Note, it might decide (or be required) to pay its other lenders first. 

 Dram Shop Liability Risk 
 The Company plans to serve alcoholic beverages on its premises, subject to local, state and federal laws 
 and regulaƟons. Under law, if an establishment serves alcoholic beverages to a visibly intoxicated person, 
 that establishment (in this case, the Company) is liable for any damages caused by that person, even if 
 these damages occur outside of Company property, or a Ɵme subsequent to the service of alcoholic 
 beverages to that person (this is known as Dram Shop liability). The Company could be subject to legal 
 liability if the persons or enƟƟes so injured sue the Company and the resulƟng liability is not covered by 
 insurance.  

 Social Host Liability Risk 
 Insofar as the Company plans to serve alcoholic beverages on its premises, it incurs the risk that it might 
 serve these beverages to minors, either knowingly or unknowingly. If this occurs, the Company or its 
 employees might be subject to criminal penalƟes or arrest, impeding their ability to operate the 
 Company or damaging the Company’s brand or reputaƟon. Moreover, the Company might be liable for 
 any damages not covered by insurance caused by an underage person under the influence of alcohol, to 
 the extent that the Company or its employees knowingly served alcohol to an underage person. 

 Premises Liability Risk 
 The Company plans to serve beer at a physical tap room. Even if the Company complies with all 
 applicable laws and regulaƟons concerning the service of alcoholic beverages, and even if nobody at its 
 events consumes alcohol, customers might become injured due to the negligence of the Company. For 
 example, customers might fall because the taproom was constructed improperly. If the customers so 
 injured sue the Company, the resulƟng liability might not be covered by insurance. 

 USE OF FUNDS 

 Minimum Target Goal  Maximum Target Goal 
 Total Proceeds  $25,000  $1,000,000 
 Less: Intermediary Fee*  $2,000  $61,500 
 Less: Admin Fee**  $109  $109 
 Net Proceeds  $22,891  $938,391 
 * Applied at a marginal-rate based upon amount raised: 

 Up to $50,000 = 8.0%, $50,0001 - $100,000 = 7.0%, $100,001 - $250,000 = 6.0%, $250,001+ = 5.0% 

 If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the Minimum Target Goal 
 amount as of the Offering Deadline, no securiƟes will be sold in the offering, investment commitments 
 will be canceled, and all commiƩed funds will be returned. 
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 TRANSACTION MECHANICS 

 The following describes the process to invest in PBV Holdings Inc and how an investor’s transacƟon and 
 delivery of securiƟes will be completed. 

 a.  Investor Commitment:  Through the Honeycomb Portal,  an investor will submit a 
 requested investment amount. As a part of this process, an investor will execute an 
 investment contract with PBV Holdings Inc (“Share Purchase Agreement”) by way of the 
 investor’s electronic signature. 

 b.  Acceptance of Investment  : Upon compleƟon of the investment  commitment, the 
 investor will receive via email a confirmaƟon of their transacƟon detailing the amount, 
 terms, and date of execuƟon. 

 c.  Investor Transfer of Funds  : Upon receiving confirmaƟon  that an investment has been 
 accepted, the investor will transfer funds to the escrow account of a third-party bank 
 managed by Honeycomb Portal. 

 d.  Early Closings  : If the target offering amount is met  prior to the original deadline date, we 
 may close the offering earlier, but no less than 21 days aŌer the date on which the Form 
 C is posted on the Honeycomb Portal. 

 e.  Book Entry  : All investments will be in book entry  form. This means that the Investor will 
 not receive a cerƟficate represenƟng their investment. Each investment will be recorded 
 by Honeycomb Portal and visible by the investor through their Investor Dashboard. 

 Investors may cancel an investment commitment unƟl 48 hours prior to the deadline idenƟfied in these 
 offering materials. 

 The intermediary will noƟfy investors when the target offering amount has been met. 

 If the issuer reaches the target offering amount prior to the deadline idenƟfied in the offering materials, 
 it may close the offering early if it provides noƟce about the new offering deadline at least five business 
 days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an extension of 
 the offering and reconfirmaƟon of the investment commitment). 

 If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period prior to the offering 
 deadline, the funds will be released to the issuer upon closing of the offering and the investor will 
 receive securiƟes in exchange for his or investment. 

 If an investor does not reconfirm his or her investment commitment aŌer a material change is made to 
 the offering, the investor’s investment commitment will be cancelled and the commiƩed funds will be 
 returned. 

 The Qualified Third Party of the Offering is North Capital Private SecuriƟes CorporaƟon. 

 Note:  For more informaƟon about the investment and  cancellaƟon process, see Honeycomb’s EducaƟon 
 Materials. 

 Details of Security Being Offered 
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 The Company has authorized the sale of equity stock through this RegulaƟon Crowdfunding offering. The 
 Company will be offering up to 250,000 shares of Series A ConverƟble Preferred Stock. 

 VoƟng Rights -  One vote per Share 

 Vo ng Proxy 

 Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief ExecuƟve Officer of the Company (the "CEO"), or his or her 
 successor, as the Subscriber's true and lawful proxy and aƩorney, with the power to act alone and with 
 full power of subsƟtuƟon, to, consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote 
 all SecuriƟes, (ii) give and receive noƟces and communicaƟons, (iii) execute any instrument or 
 document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its authority under 
 this instrument, and (iv) take all acƟons necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the 
 accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this 
 SecƟon are coupled, with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, 
 so long as the Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the 
 Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an enƟty, will survive the merger or reorganizaƟon of the 
 Subscriber or any other enƟty holding the SecuriƟes. Hov.rever, the Proxy will terminate upon the 
 closing of a firm-commitment underwriƩen public offering pursuant to an effecƟve registraƟon 
 statement under the SecuriƟes Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the 
 effecƟveness of a registraƟon statement under the SecuriƟes Exchange Act of 1934 covering the 
 Common Stock. 

 Minority Holder 

 As a minority holder of Shares of this offering, you have granted your votes by proxy to the CEO of the 
 Company. Even if you were to receive control of your voƟng rights, as a minority holder, you will have 
 limited rights in regards to the corporate acƟons of the company, including addiƟonal issuances of 
 securiƟes, company repurchases of securiƟes, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or 
 company transacƟons with related parƟes. Further, investors in this offering may have rights less than 
 those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate acƟons of the company. 

 RestricƟons on Transfer of the SecuriƟes Being Offered 

 The shares will be illiquid (meaning you might not be able to sell it) for four reasons: 

 -  The Share Purchase Agreement  prohibits the sale or other transfer of Notes without the 
 Company’s consent. 

 -  If you want to sell your shares, the Company will have the first right of refusal to buy it, which 
 could make it harder to find a buyer. 

 -  Even if a sale were permiƩed, there is no ready market for shares as there would be for a 
 publicly-traded company. 
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 -  For a period of one year, you will not be allowed to transfer the Note except (i) to the Company 
 itself, (ii) to an “accredited” investor, (iii) to a family or trust, or (iv) in a public offering of the 
 Company’s shares. 

 ADDITIONAL MATTERS RELATED TO THE SECURITY 

 1. How may the rights of the securiƟes being offered be materially limited, diluted or qualified by the 
 rights of any other class of security idenƟfied above? 

 Investors should understand the potenƟal for diluƟon. The investor's stake in a company could be diluted 
 due to the company issuing addiƟonal shares. In other words, when the company issues more shares, 
 the percentage of the company that you own will go down, even though the value of the company may 
 go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in the number of shares 
 outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an iniƟal public offering, another crowdfunding 
 round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees exercising stock opƟons, or by conversion 
 of certain instruments (e.g. converƟble bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. 

 If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value diluƟon, with each 
 share being worth less than before, and control diluƟon, with the total percentage an investor owns 
 being less than before. 

 2.  Are there any differences not reflected above between the securiƟes being offered and each other 
 class of security of the issuer? 

 As a minority holder of Shares of this offering, you have granted your votes by proxy to the CEO of the 
 Company. Even if you were to receive control of your voƟng rights, as a minority holder, you will have 
 limited rights in regards to the corporate acƟons of the company, including addiƟonal issuances of 
 securiƟes, company repurchases of securiƟes, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or 
 company transacƟons with related parƟes. Further, investors in this offering may have rights less than 
 those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate acƟons of the company. 

 3.  How could the exercise of rights held by the principal shareholders affect the purchasers of the 
 securiƟes being offered? 

 The principal shareholders could make decisions that are bad for the company and thereby adversely 
 affect the economic interests of investors holding promissory notes. They could also issue other classes 
 of securiƟes with rights superior to those of investors holding promissory notes. 

 4.  How are the securiƟes being offered being valued? Include examples of methods for how such 
 securiƟes may be valued by the issuer in the future, including during subsequent corporate acƟons. 

 The price of the shares were determined by the Owner based on the Owner’s opinion about the value of 
 the project. 
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 5.  What are the risks to purchasers of the securiƟes relaƟng to minority ownership in the issuer? 

 As a minority holder of Shares of this offering, you have granted your votes by proxy to the CEO of the 
 Company. Even if you were to receive control of your voƟng rights, as a minority holder, you will have 
 limited rights in regards to the corporate acƟons of the company, including addiƟonal issuances of 
 securiƟes, company repurchases of securiƟes, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or 
 company transacƟons with related parƟes. Further, investors in this offering may have rights less than 
 those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate acƟons of the company. 

 6.  What are the risks to purchasers associated with corporate acƟons, including addiƟonal issuances of 
 securiƟes, issuer repurchases of securiƟes, a sale of the issuer or of assets of the issuer or 
 transacƟons with related parƟes? 

 The company could issue securiƟes with rights superior to those of their shares. 

 TransacƟons with related parƟes – for example, the payment of excessive compensaƟon – could reduce 
 the amount of money available to make payments with respect to the investors. 

 7.  What other exempt offerings has the issuer conducted within the past three years? 

 None. 

 8.  The issuer or any enƟƟes controlled by or under the common control with the issuer was not a party 
 to any transacƟon since the beginning of the issuer’s last fiscal year, or any currently proposed 
 transacƟon, where the amount involved exceeds five percent of the aggregate amount of capital 
 raised by the issuer in reliance on SecƟon 4(a)(6) of the SecuriƟes Act during the preceding 12-month 
 period, including the amount the issuer seeks to raise in the current offering, in which any of the 
 following persons had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest: 

 1.  any director or officer of the issuer; 
 2.  any person who is, as of the most recent pracƟcable date, the beneficial owner 

 of 20 percent or more of the issuer’s outstanding voƟng equity securiƟes, 
 calculated on the basis of voƟng power; 

 3.  if the issuer was incorporated or organized within the past three years, any 
 promoter of the issuer; 

 4.  or (4) any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons. 

 None. 

 FINANCIAL CONDITION OF THE ISSUER 

 The Company needs funds from this offering to commence operaƟons. Without these funds, the 
 Company would need to find other investment to begin operaƟons. At this Ɵme, the Company has no 
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 plans to raise addiƟonal capital.  The Company is seeking financing and its financial future cannot be 
 guaranteed. 

 Below is a summary of the Company’s exisƟng debt obligaƟons: 

 FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 The fiscal year end for this business is December 31. 

 There have been no changes in the company ownership for the period reviewed. 

 See  Exhibit C - Reviewed Financials  for the Company’s  historical financial informaƟon. 

 STAKEHOLDER ELIGIBILITY 

 With respect to the issuer, any predecessor of the issuer, any affiliated issuer, any director, officer, 
 general partner or managing member of the issuer, any beneficial owner of 20 percent or more of the 
 issuer’s outstanding voƟng equity securiƟes, any promoter connected with the issuer in any capacity at 
 the Ɵme of such sale, any person that has been or will be paid (directly or indirectly) remuneraƟon for 
 solicitaƟon of purchasers in connecƟon with such sale of securiƟes, or any general partner, director, 
 officer, or managing member of any such solicitor, prior to May 16, 2016: 

 1) None of any such person has been convicted, within 10 years (or five years, in the case of issuers, their 
 predecessors and affiliated issuers) before the filing of this offering statement, of any felony or 
 misdemeanor: 

 i) in connecƟon with the purchase or sale of any security; 

 ii) involving the making of any false filing with the SEC; 

 iii) arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal 
 securiƟes dealer, investment adviser, funding portal or paid solicitor of purchasers of securiƟes. 

 2) None of any such person has been subject to any order, judgement or decree of any court of 
 competent jurisdicƟon, entered within five years before the filing of informaƟon required by SecƟon 
 4A(b) of the SecuriƟes Act that, at the Ɵme of filing of this offering statement, restrains or enjoins such 
 person from engaging or conƟnuing to engage in any conduct or pracƟce: 

 i)   in connecƟon with the purchase or sale of any security; 

 ii)  involving the making of any false filing with the Commission; 
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 iii) arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal 
 securiƟes dealer, investment adviser, funding portal or paid solicitor of purchasers of securiƟes. 

 3) None of any such person has been subject to a final order of a state securiƟes commission (or an 
 agency or officer of a state performing like funcƟons); a state authority that supervises or examines 
 banks, savings associaƟons or credit unions; a state insurance commission (or an agency or officer of a 
 state performing like funcƟons); an appropriate federal banking agency; the U.S. Commodity Futures 
 Trading Commission; or the NaƟonal Credit Union AdministraƟon that: 

 i) at the Ɵme of the filing of this offering statement bars the person from: 
 a)  associaƟon with an enƟty regulated by such commission, authority, agency or 

 officer; 
 b)  engaging in the business of securiƟes, insurance or banking; 
 c)  engaging in savings associaƟon or credit union acƟviƟes; or 

 ii) consƟtutes a final order based on a violaƟon of any law or regulaƟon that prohibits 
 fraudulent, manipulaƟve or decepƟve conduct for which the order was entered within the 
 10-year period ending on the date of the filing of this offering statement. 

 4) None of any such person has been subject to an order of the Commission entered pursuant to SecƟon 
 15(b) or 15B(c) of the Exchange Act or SecƟon 203(e) or (f) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that, 
 at the Ɵme of the filing of this offering statement: 

 i) suspends or revokes such person’s registraƟon as a broker, dealer, municipal securiƟes dealer, 
 investment adviser or funding portal; 

 ii) places limitaƟon on the acƟviƟes, funcƟons or operaƟons of such person; 

 iii) bars such person from being associated with any enƟty with any enƟty or from parƟcipaƟng 
 in the offering of any penny stock. 

 5) None of any such person has been subject to any order of the Commission entered within five years 
 before the filing of this offering statement that, at the Ɵme of the filing of this offering statement, orders 
 the person to cease and desist from commiƫng or causing a violaƟon or future violaƟon of: 

 i) any scienter-based anƟ-fraud provision of the federal securiƟes laws, including without 
 limitaƟon SecƟon 17(a)(1) of the SecuriƟes Act, SecƟon 10(b) of the Exchange Act, SecƟon 
 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act and SecƟon 206(1) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or any 
 other rule or regulaƟon thereunder; 
 ii) SecƟon 5 of the SecuriƟes Act; 

 6) None of any such person has been suspended or expelled from membership in, or suspended or 
 barred from associaƟon with a member of, a registered naƟonal securiƟes exchange or a registered 
 naƟonal or affiliated securiƟes associaƟon for any act or omission to act consƟtuƟng conduct 
 inconsistent with just and equitable principles of trade. 
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 7) None of any such person filed (as a registrant or issuer), or was any such person or was any such 
 person named as an underwriter in, any registraƟon statement or RegulaƟon A offering statement filed 
 with the Commission that, within five years before the filing of this offering statement, was the subject 
 of a refusal order, stop order, or order suspending the RegulaƟon A exempƟon, or is any such person, at 
 the Ɵme of such filing, the subject of an invesƟgaƟon or proceeding to determine whether a stop order 
 or suspension order should be issued. 

 8) None of any such person has been subject to a United States Postal Service false representaƟon order 
 entered within five years before the filing of the informaƟon required by SecƟon 4A(b) of the SecuriƟes 
 Act, or is any such person, at the Ɵme of filing of this offering statement, subject to a temporary 
 restraining order or preliminary injuncƟon with respect to conduct alleged by the United States Postal 
 Service to consƟtute a scheme or device for obtaining money or property through the mail by means of 
 false representaƟons. 

 OTHER MATERIAL INFORMATION 

 All informaƟon presented to investors is hosted on honeycombcredit.com in the “Investor Info” SecƟon 
 of the campaign page. 

 ONGOING REPORTING 

 The issuer will file a report electronically with the SecuriƟes & Exchange Commission annually and post 
 the report on its website, no later than 120 days aŌer the end of each fiscal year covered by the report. 

 The Issuer must conƟnue to comply with the ongoing reporƟng requirements unƟl: 

 1)  the issuer is required to file reports under SecƟon 13(a) or SecƟon 15(d) of the Exchange Act; 
 2)  the issuer has filed, since its most recent sale of securiƟes pursuant to this part, at least one 

 annual report to this secƟon and has fewer than 300 holders of record; 
 3)  the issuer has filed, since its most recent sale of securiƟes pursuant to this part, the annual 

 reports required pursuant to this secƟon for at least the three most recent years and has total 
 assets that do not exceed $10,000,000; 

 4)  the issuer or another party repurchases all of the securiƟes issued in reliance on SecƟon 4(a)(6) 
 of the SecuriƟes Act, including any payment in full of debt securiƟes or any complete 
 redempƟon of redeemable securiƟes; or 

 5)  the issuer liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law. 
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 EXHIBIT A – SHAREHOLDERS’  AGREEMENT 

 THIS SHAREHOLDERS’ AGREEMENT OF PBV HOLDINGS, INC. (this “Agreement”) is entered into, by, 
 between, and among the holders of Common Stock and Series A Preferred Stock of the CorporaƟon 
 listed on Exhibit A aƩached hereto (collecƟvely, the “Shareholders”, and, each individually, a 
 “Shareholder”), PBV Holdings, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporaƟon (the “CorporaƟon”), and such other 
 parƟes who may become Shareholders to this Agreement pursuant to the terms set forth herein. 

 Background 

 In connecƟon with the incorporaƟon of the CorporaƟon, Nathan McLaughlin (“  McLaughlin  ”) 
 contributed capital to the CorporaƟon in exchange for 900,000 shares of common stock of the 
 CorporaƟon (“  Common Stock  ”). On May 27, 2021, PiƩsburgh  Brewing Ventures, Inc., a Pennsylvania 
 corporaƟon (“  PBV  ”), merged with and into the CorporaƟon,  with the CorporaƟon surviving the 
 merger, pursuant to the terms and provisions of that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as 
 of May 26, 2021 (the “  Merger Agreement  ”), by and between  the CorporaƟon and PBV. Pursuant to 
 the Merger Agreement, among other things, each share of Series A Preferred Stock of the CorporaƟon 
 was exchanged for a share of Series A Preferred Stock of the CorporaƟon (“  Series A Preferred Stock  ”). 
 The issued and outstanding shares of the capital stock of the CorporaƟon, together with any other 
 authorized shares of the CorporaƟon’s capital stock which may be issued to the Shareholders, 
 including, but not limited to, Common Stock and Series A Preferred Stock, are hereinaŌer collecƟvely 
 referred to as the “  Shares  ” and, each individually,  a “  Share  ”. As of the date hereof, the Shareholders 
 hold all of the issued and outstanding Shares, which are owned as set forth on  Schedule I  aƩached 
 hereto, as may be amended from Ɵme to Ɵme. The Shareholders believe that it is in the best interests 
 of the CorporaƟon and the Shareholders that the Shares be owned by Shareholders who share 
 consistent ideas for the conduct and management of the CorporaƟon, and, accordingly, that provision 
 be made for the orderly future disposiƟon of the Shares. 

 Agreement 
 NOW,  THEREFORE  ,  intending  to  be  legally  bound,  in  consideraƟon  of  the  mutual  agreements  and 
 covenants  contained  herein,  and  for  other  good  and  valuable  consideraƟon,  the  receipt  of  which  is 
 hereby acknowledged, it is mutually agreed by and among the parƟes to this Agreement, as follows: 

 1.  Transfers of Shares; Offers  . 

 (a)  RestricƟons on Shareholders  . No  Shareholder is permiƩed to, in any manner, sell, 
 transfer, assign, donate, pledge, encumber, or otherwise dispose of (each such transacƟon being 
 referred to herein as a “  Transfer  ”) any Share that  the Shareholder now owns or hereaŌer 
 acquires, except as permiƩed by and made in accordance with this Agreement. 

 (b)  CondiƟons on All Transfers  . Notwithstanding  anything to the contrary contained in this 
 Agreement, and in addiƟon to any other condiƟons provided for in this Agreement with 
 respect to the applicable Transfer, no Transfer pursuant to any provision of this Agreement 
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 shall be made, or, if aƩempted or purported to be made, shall be effecƟve, unless and unƟl the 
 CorporaƟon is saƟsfied that the Transfer will not violate federal and applicable state securiƟes 
 law or any other law or agreement. If the Transfer would violate any such law or agreement 
 and a Shareholder nevertheless aƩempts or purports to Transfer such Shareholder’s Shares, 
 then the CorporaƟon shall not recognize such Transfer on the records of the CorporaƟon and 
 such Transfer will, to the fullest extent permiƩed by law, be void. In addiƟon, such Shareholder 
 will be liable to the CorporaƟon and the other Shareholders for damages, if any, which may 
 result from such purported Transfer. In the event that any Shareholder or other transferee 
 hereaŌer acquires by purchase, stock dividend, Transfer, conversion, stock split or any other 
 method any shares or other securiƟes of the CorporaƟon, such shares or securiƟes shall be 
 included in the definiƟon of the term Shares hereunder and shall automaƟcally be subject to 
 the terms and condiƟons of this Agreement, and any Shareholder not otherwise party to this 
 Agreement shall be required to execute a joinder to this Agreement in form and substance 
 saƟsfactory to the CorporaƟon. 

 (c)  Right of First Refusal  . 
 (i)  Subject to the further terms  of this Agreement, including, without limitaƟon, the 
 provisions of this SecƟon 1, if a holder of Series A Preferred Stock (the “  Series A Transferring 
 Shareholder  ”) desires to Transfer all or any of the  Series A Transferring Shareholder’s Shares of 
 Series A Preferred Stock to a “Person” or “Persons” (as defined below) who are not then parƟes 
 to this Agreement, the Series A Transferring Shareholder shall first obtain a bona fide wriƩen 
 offer (the “  Offer  ”) for the Transfer of such Shares  (the Shares specified in such Offer shall be 
 referred to herein as the “  Offered Shares  ”) for a  fixed price which the Series A Transferring 
 Shareholder desires to accept. The Offer shall set forth the following: (A) the date of the Offer; 
 (B) the proposed price per Share; (C) the proposed number of Shares to be transferred; 

 (D)  the  name  or  names  of  the  proposed  purchaser  or  purchasers;  and  (E)  all  other  material  terms  and 
 condiƟons  upon  which  the  Transfer  is  proposed  to  be  effected,  which  shall  include  the  agreement  of 
 the  purchaser  or  purchasers  (“  Proposed  Transferee  ”)  to  be  bound  by  the  terms  of  this  Agreement. 
 The  Series  A  Transferring  Shareholder  shall  deliver  a  copy  of  the  Offer  to  the  board  of  directors  of  the 
 CorporaƟon  (the  “  Board  ”)  and  the  other  Shareholders  (the  “  Remaining  Shareholders  ”)  within  seven 
 (7)  days  aŌer  receipt  of  the  Offer.  The  CorporaƟon  and  the  Remaining  Shareholders  shall  consider  the 
 Offer  in  accordance  with  SecƟon  1(c)(ii)-(iv)  below.  For  purposes  of  this  Agreement,  the  term  “  Person  ” 
 means  and  includes  any  individual,  unincorporated  organizaƟon,  corporaƟon,  company,  limited 
 liability  company,  partnership  (general  or  limited),  joint  venture,  associaƟon,  trust,  enƟty  or 
 organizaƟon. 

 (ii)  The CorporaƟon (or an assignee  of the CorporaƟon’s rights under this SecƟon 1(c), the 
 CorporaƟon and any such assignee being referred to in this SecƟon 1(c), collecƟvely or 
 separately, as the context may dictate, as the “CorporaƟon”) shall have the opƟon, exercisable 
 by wriƩen noƟce to the Series A Transferring Shareholder and the Remaining Shareholders 
 within thirty (30) days aŌer the date on which the Board received the Offer, to purchase the 
 Offered Shares or any porƟon of the Offered Shares for the price set forth in the Offer. 

 (iii)  If the CorporaƟon does not elect  to purchase all of the Offered Shares, each of the 
 Remaining Shareholders will have the opƟon, exercisable by wriƩen noƟce to the 
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 Transferring  Shareholder  and  all  of  the  Remaining  Shareholders  within  thirty  (30)  days  aŌer  the  date 
 on  which  the  last  Remaining  Shareholder  received  the  Offer  to  purchase  up  to  such  Remaining 
 Shareholder’s  pro  rata  porƟon  of  the  Offered  Shares  that  the  CorporaƟon  has  not  elected  to  purchase, 
 at  the  price  and  upon  the  terms  and  condiƟons  set  forth  in  the  Offer.  A  Remaining  Shareholder’s  pro 
 rata  porƟon  of  any  Offered  Shares  available  for  purchase  by  the  Remaining  Shareholders  is  a  number 
 of  Offered  Shares  determined  by  dividing  (A)  the  number  of  Shares  then  held  by  that  Remaining 
 Shareholder  by  (B)  the  total  number  of  Shares  then  held  by  all  Remaining  Shareholders,  then 
 mulƟplying  the  resulƟng  quoƟent  by  the  number  of  Offered  Shares  available  for  purchase  by  the 
 Remaining Shareholders. 

 (iv)  If any Remaining Shareholder does  not elect to purchase all of the Offered Shares to 
 which such Remaining Shareholder was enƟtled, the Transferring Shareholder will give each 
 Remaining Shareholder that elected to purchase all of the Offered Shares (the “  ElecƟng 
 Shareholders  ”) to which such ElecƟng Shareholders  were enƟtled, noƟce of the number of 
 Offered Shares for which the Remaining Shareholders did not subscribe. Each ElecƟng 
 Shareholder will thereaŌer have ten (10) days from the date of such noƟce to agree to purchase 
 all or any part of such ElecƟng Shareholder’s  pro  rata  porƟon of the Offered Shares for which 
 the Remaining Shareholders had not theretofore subscribed. For purposes of this second 
 Shareholder offer under this SecƟon 1(c)(iv) and any subsequent Shareholder offers, Shares held 
 by Shareholders other than the ElecƟng Shareholders will be excluded from the denominator 
 described in the definiƟon of a Remaining Shareholder’s  pro rata  porƟon. 

 (v)  So long as a Remaining Shareholder  conƟnues to elect to purchase all of such Remaining 
 Shareholder’s  pro rata  porƟon of the Offered Shares,  that Remaining Shareholder will conƟnue 
 to be offered a porƟon of the Offered Shares that is not purchased by the Remaining 
 Shareholders in accordance with SecƟon 1(c)(iv) above. 

 (vi)  If the CorporaƟon or the Remaining  Shareholders do not purchase all of the Offered 
 Shares pursuant to this SecƟon 1(c), the Transferring Shareholder may complete the Transfer of 
 the Offered Shares (or any porƟon thereof) not so purchased only to the Proposed Transferee 
 who made the Offer and only on the terms contained in the Offer, provided that the Proposed 
 Transferee agrees in wriƟng to be bound by all the terms and condiƟons of this Agreement and, 
 provided further, that such Transfer can be made in conformity with the other provisions of this 
 Agreement. If such Transfer does not occur within ninety (90) days aŌer the date of the Offer, 
 the Transferring Shareholder shall, prior to any Transfer, again offer to sell such Shares to the 
 CorporaƟon and the Remaining Shareholder in accordance with this SecƟon 1(c). 

 (d)  Exempted Transfers  . The provisions  of SecƟon 1(c) hereof shall not apply to any 
 Transfer or proposed Transfer by a Shareholder to (i) a trust or other estate planning vehicle 
 established for such Shareholder’s benefit or the benefit of one or more of his or her family 
 members, or (ii) “affiliates” (as that term is defined in SecƟon 12b-2 of the SecuriƟes Exchange 
 Act of 1934, as amended (“  Affiliates  ”)) of such Shareholder;  provided, however, that the 
 transferee agrees in wriƟng to be bound by all the terms and condiƟons of this Agreement 
 and, provided further, that such Transfer can be made in conformity with the other provisions 
 of this Agreement including, without limitaƟon, SecƟon 3 hereof. 

 INTENDED FOR REVIEW BY POTENTIAL INVESTORS ON HONEYCOMB CREDIT ONLY. DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE 



 (e)  Drag-Along  . 
 (i)  Subject to compliance with the  rights of first refusal set forth in SecƟon 1(c) hereof, if 
 any Shareholders owning more than fiŌy percent (50%) of the Shares then outstanding 
 proposes to sell or otherwise Transfer all of such Shareholders’ Shares (in a sale consummated 
 in a single Transfer or a series of related Transfers to a single purchaser or a group of purchasers 
 as part of a single transacƟon or a group of related transacƟons in which the purchaser desires 
 to acquire one hundred percent (100%) of the Shares then outstanding), then such 
 Shareholders (the “  Transferring Shareholders  ”) shall  have the right (the “  Drag-Along Right  ”), 
 but not the obligaƟon, to cause the other Shareholders other than McLaughlin (the 
 “  Non-Founding Remaining Shareholders  ”) to tender to  the third party offeree(s) for purchase, 
 at the same price per Share and on the same payment terms and condiƟons as apply to the 
 Transferring Shareholders, all of the Shares owned by the Non-Founding Remaining 
 Shareholders. 

 (ii)  If the Transferring Shareholders  elect to exercise the Drag-Along Right under this SecƟon 
 1(e), then the Transferring Shareholders shall noƟfy the other Shareholders in wriƟng (such 
 wriƟng, the “  Drag-Along NoƟce  ”). Each Drag-Along  NoƟce shall set forth (A) the name of the 
 third party offeree(s) to which the Transferring Shareholders propose to sell or otherwise 
 Transfer the Shares and the aggregate number of Shares proposed to be sold; (B) the address of 
 the third party offeree(s); (C) the proposed amount, the form of consideraƟon and the terms 
 and condiƟons of payment offered by the third party offeree(s), along with any other material 
 terms relaƟng to such sale or Transfer (the “  Third  Party Terms  ”); and (D) a statement that the 
 third party offeree(s) has been informed of the rights provided for in this SecƟon 1(e) and has 
 agreed to purchase the Shares in accordance with the terms hereof. The Drag-Along NoƟce shall 
 be submiƩed to the other Shareholders at least fiŌeen (15) days prior to seƩlement of the 
 proposed Transfer. 

 (iii)  Upon receipt of a Drag-Along NoƟce,  the Non-Founding Remaining Shareholders shall be 
 enƟtled and obligated to sell all of his, her or its Shares to the third party offeree(s) upon the 
 Third Party Terms; provided, however, that neither the Transferring Shareholders nor the 
 Non-Founding Remaining Shareholders shall be obligated to consummate the sale of any Shares 
 if the third party offeree(s) does not purchase all of the Shares then outstanding, other than the 
 Shares owned and held by McLaughlin. Each Shareholder hereby covenants and agrees that 
 upon receipt of the Drag-Along NoƟce, such Shareholder will take such acƟons and execute such 
 documents and instruments as shall be necessary or appropriate to consummate any sale 
 contemplated by this SecƟon 1(e). 

 (iv)  At the seƩlement of any sale or  Transfer pursuant to this SecƟon 1(e), the third party 
 offeree(s) shall remit to each Shareholder the consideraƟon for the total sales price of the 
 Shares of such Shareholder sold pursuant hereto upon delivery by such Shareholder, if 
 applicable, of any cerƟficate(s) for such Shares duly endorsed in blank for Transfer or 
 accompanied by Share power(s) duly executed in blank. 

 (v)  Nothing in this SecƟon 1(e)  shall require any Shareholder to agree to 
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 (A)  be  bound  by  any  non-compeƟƟon  or  similar  obligaƟon,  (B)  be  liable  for  the  acts  or  omissions  of 
 others  or  for  any  liabiliƟes  or  obligaƟons  in  excess  of  the  amount(s)  received  by  it  in  connecƟon  with 
 such  sale  or  Transfer,  (C)  appoint  or  authorize  any  other  person  or  enƟty  to  act  for  it  or  on  its  behalf  as 
 an agent or otherwise (except in the case of a stock power, to be executed to sell or 

 otherwise  Transfer  all  of  such  Shareholders’  Shares  pursuant  to  this  SecƟon  1(e)),  or  (D)  enter  into  any 
 general  release  (although  a  Shareholder  may  be  required  to  enter  into  a  release  in  its  capacity  as  a 
 Shareholder with respect to any of its Shares). 

 (f)  Right of First Offer  . 

 (i)  The CorporaƟon hereby grants  to McLaughlin and each holder of Series A Preferred 
 Stock the right of first offer to purchase a  pro rata  share of any “New SecuriƟes” (as defined 
 below) which the CorporaƟon may, from Ɵme to Ɵme, propose to sell and issue on the same 
 terms as such New SecuriƟes are offered to other purchasers. The  pro rata  share, for purposes 
 of this SecƟon 1(f), is the raƟo that the number of Shares owned by such holder on as 
 as-converted basis bears to the total number of Shares then issued, outstanding and owned by 
 all Shareholders. 

 (ii)  Except as further set forth in this  SecƟon 1(f), “  New SecuriƟes  ” shall mean any shares  of 
 capital stock of the CorporaƟon, whether now authorized or not, and rights, opƟons or warrants 
 to purchase such shares of capital stock, or securiƟes of any type whatsoever that are, or may 
 become, converƟble into equity securiƟes of the CorporaƟon. Notwithstanding the foregoing 
 sentence, “New SecuriƟes” shall not include: (i) Shares issued or issuable in connecƟon with any 
 stock split, stock dividend or recapitalizaƟon by the CorporaƟon; (ii) Shares issuable or issued 
 pursuant to a stock opƟon plan, other incenƟve compensaƟon arrangement or plan, restricted 
 stock plan, stock SubscripƟon Agreement or stock issuance agreement approved by the Board 
 to employees, consultants or directors of the CorporaƟon; (iii) Shares issued in a  bona fide  , 
 firmly underwriƩen public offering of shares of the CorporaƟon’s capital stock; or (iv) Shares 
 issuable or issued in connecƟon with a duly approved  bona fide  strategic alliance, partnership 
 agreement, or business acquisiƟon of or by the CorporaƟon, whether by merger, consolidaƟon, 
 sale of assets, sale or exchange of stock or otherwise. 

 (iii)  In the event the CorporaƟon proposes  to undertake an issuance of New SecuriƟes, it 
 shall give McLaughlin and each holder of Series A Preferred Stock wriƩen noƟce of its intenƟon, 
 describing the type of New SecuriƟes and the price and terms upon which the CorporaƟon 
 proposes to issue such New SecuriƟes. McLaughlin and each holder of Series A Preferred Stock 
 shall have fiŌeen (15) days from the date of receipt of any such noƟce to purchase up to such 
 holder’s respecƟve  pro rata  share of such New SecuriƟes  for the price and upon the terms 
 specified in such noƟce by delivering wriƩen noƟce to the CorporaƟon and staƟng therein the 
 quanƟty of New SecuriƟes to be purchased by such holder. Any sale to McLaughlin or holders of 
 Series A Preferred Stock in accordance with the right of first offer described in this SecƟon 1(f) 
 shall be consummated as promptly as possible following the fiŌeen (15) day noƟce period set 
 forth in this SecƟon 1(f). 
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 (iv)  To the extent McLaughlin or the holders of Series A Preferred Stock fail to exercise in full 
 the right of first offer within such fiŌeen (15) day period, the CorporaƟon shall have one 
 hundred eighty (180) days thereaŌer to sell the New SecuriƟes not elected to be purchased by 
 such holders at the price and upon terms no more favorable to the purchasers of such New 
 SecuriƟes than is specified in the CorporaƟon’s noƟce delivered in accordance with this SecƟon 
 1(f). In the event the CorporaƟon does not sell all of the remaining New SecuriƟes within such 
 one hundred eighty (180) day period, the CorporaƟon shall not thereaŌer issue or sell any New 
 SecuriƟes without first offering such New SecuriƟes to McLaughlin and the holders of Series A 
 Preferred Stock in the manner provided in this SecƟon 1(f). 

 (v)  The right of first offer granted  to McLaughlin and each of the holders of Series A 
 Preferred Stock pursuant to this SecƟon 1(f) shall not be assignable by any Shareholder 
 without the CorporaƟon’s prior wriƩen consent. 

 (vi)  Notwithstanding any provision of  this SecƟon 1(f) to the contrary, the CorporaƟon shall 
 not have the obligaƟon to sell any New SecuriƟes to McLaughlin or any holder of Series A 
 Preferred Stock in accordance with the provisions of this SecƟon 1(f) in the event that (i) such 
 holder is not an “accredited investor,” as such term is defined in Rule 501 of RegulaƟon D of the 
 SecuriƟes Act of 1933, as amended (the “  SecuriƟes  Act  ”), at the Ɵme of such sale, or (ii) such 
 sale would be in violaƟon of any applicable laws, including, without limitaƟon, any applicable 
 securiƟes laws. 

 2.  VoƟng Provisions Regarding Board  of Directors; Brewing Decisions  . 
 (a)  Size of Board  . Each Shareholder  agrees to vote, or cause to be voted, all Shares owned 
 by such Shareholder, or over which such Shareholder has voƟng control, from Ɵme to Ɵme and 
 at all Ɵmes, in whatever manner as shall be necessary to ensure that the size of the Board shall 
 be set and remain at three (3) directors. 

 (b)  Board ComposiƟon  . Each Shareholder  agrees to vote, or cause to be voted, all Shares 
 owned by such Shareholder, or over which such Shareholder has voƟng control, from Ɵme to 
 Ɵme and at all Ɵmes, in whatever manner as shall be necessary to ensure that at each annual or 
 special meeƟng of Shareholders at which an elecƟon of directors is held or pursuant to any 
 wriƩen consent of the Shareholders, the following persons shall be elected as directors to serve 
 on the Board: 

 (i)  One (1) individual designated  by the holders of a majority of the Shares of Series A 
 Preferred Stock, voƟng as a separate class; and 

 (ii)  Two (2) individuals designated by  the holders of a majority of the Shares of Common 
 Stock, voƟng as a separate class; provided, however, one of the individuals designated by the 
 holders of Shares of Common Stock shall be McLaughlin for so long as McLaughlin owns at least 
 one Share of Common Stock and the shareholders shall vote their shares of Common Stock 
 accordingly. 
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 (c)  Failure to Designate a Board Member  . In the absence of any designaƟon from the 
 Persons or groups with the right to designate a director as specified above, the director 
 previously designated by them and then serving shall be reelected if sƟll eligible to serve as 
 provided herein. 

 (d)  Removal of Board Members  . 

 (i)  Each Shareholder also agrees to  vote, or cause to be voted, all Shares owned by such 
 Shareholder, or over which such Shareholder has voƟng control, from Ɵme to Ɵme and at all 
 Ɵmes, in whatever manner as shall be necessary to ensure that: 

 (A)  notwithstanding anything to the contrary,  for so long as McLaughlin owns at least one 
 Share of Common Stock, McLaughlin shall be permiƩed to serve as 

 and remain a director of the CorporaƟon and shall not be subject to removal from his posiƟon as a 
 director for any reason; 

 (B)  subject to SecƟon 2(d)(i)(A), no  director elected pursuant to SecƟon 2(b)(i) or 2(b)(ii) 
 may be removed from office other than for Cause (as defined below) unless (  x  ) the director to 
 be removed from office is someone other than McLaughlin  and  (  y  ) such removal is directed or 
 approved by the affirmaƟve vote of the Person, or of the holders of the Shares, enƟtled under 
 SecƟon 2(b) to designate that director; 

 (C)  any vacancies created by the resignaƟon,  removal or death of a director elected 
 pursuant to SecƟon 2(b)(i) or (2)(b)(ii) shall be filled pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 
 2(b)(i) or 2(b)(ii), respecƟvely; and 

 (D)  subject to SecƟon 2(d)(i)(A), upon  the request of any party enƟtled to designate a 
 director as provided in SecƟon 2(b)(i) or (2)(b)(ii) to remove such director, such director shall be 
 removed. 

 (ii)  All Shareholders agree to execute  any wriƩen consents required to perform the 
 obligaƟons of this Agreement, and the CorporaƟon agrees at the request of any party enƟtled 
 to designate directors to call a special meeƟng of Shareholders for the purpose of elecƟng 
 directors. For purposes of this SecƟon 2(d), “  Cause  ”  shall mean, with respect to a director, (A) 
 convicƟon of, or the entry of a plea of guilty or no contest to, a felony or any other crime that 
 causes the CorporaƟon or its Affiliates public disgrace or disrepute, or adversely affects the 
 CorporaƟon’s or its Affiliates’ operaƟons or financial performance or the relaƟonship the 
 CorporaƟon has with its Affiliates; (B) gross negligence or willful misconduct with respect to the 
 CorporaƟon or any of its Affiliates, including, without limitaƟon, fraud, embezzlement, theŌ or 
 proven dishonesty in the course of the subject employment or engagement with the 
 CorporaƟon or its Affiliates; (C) alcohol abuse or use of controlled drugs other than in 
 accordance with a physician’s prescripƟon; 
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 (D)  refusal,  failure  or  inability  to  perform  any  material  obligaƟon  or  fulfill  any  duty  (other  than  any 
 duty  or  obligaƟon  of  the  type  described  in  clause  (F)  below)  to  the  CorporaƟon  (other  than  due  to 
 incapacity),  which  failure,  refusal  or  inability  is  not  cured  within  thirty  (30)  days  aŌer  delivery  of  noƟce 
 thereof;  (E)  material  breach  of  any  agreement  with  or  duty  owed  to  the  CorporaƟon  or  any  of  its 
 Affiliates;  or  (F)  any  breach  of  any  obligaƟon  or  duty  to  the  CorporaƟon  or  any  of  its  Affiliates 
 (whether  arising  by  statute,  common  law,  contract  or  otherwise)  relaƟng  to  confidenƟality, 
 noncompeƟƟon,  non-solicitaƟon  or  proprietary  rights.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  if  a  director 
 and  the  CorporaƟon  (or  any  of  its  Affiliates)  have  entered  into  an  employment  agreement,  consulƟng 
 agreement  or  other  similar  agreement  that  specifically  defines  “cause,”  then  with  respect  to  such 
 director,  “Cause”  shall  have  the  meaning  defined  in  that  employment  agreement,  consulƟng 
 agreement or other agreement. 

 (e)  No Liability for ElecƟon of Directors  .  No Shareholder, nor any Affiliate of any 
 Shareholder, shall have any liability as a result of designaƟng a person for elecƟon as a director 
 for any act or omission by such designated person in his or her capacity as a director of the 
 CorporaƟon, nor shall any Shareholder have any liability as a result of voƟng for any such 
 designee in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 (f)  Brewing Decisions  . Notwithstanding  anything to the contrary, for so long as McLaughlin 
 holds any Shares of Common Stock, neither the CorporaƟon nor any Shareholder, 

 acƟng  on  behalf  of  the  CorporaƟon,  shall  take  or  cause  to  be  taken  any  acƟon  which  gives  any 
 individual  other  than  McLaughlin  final  decision  making  authority  on  all  decisions  of  the  CorporaƟon 
 related to brewing beer. 

 3.  Endorsement on CerƟficates  . 

 (a)  Upon the execuƟon of this Agreement,  the cerƟficates for the Shares subject hereto 
 shall be surrendered to the CorporaƟon and endorsed with a legend in substanƟally the form 
 as follows: 

 NOTICE  IS  HEREBY  GIVEN  THAT  THE  SALE,  ASSIGNMENT, 
 TRANSFER,  PLEDGE,  HYPOTHECATION  OR  OTHER  DISPOSITION 
 OF  THE  SHARES  OF  CAPITAL  STOCK  REPRESENTED  BY  THIS 
 CERTIFICATE  IS  SUBJECT  TO  AND  RESTRICTED  BY  THE 
 PROVISIONS  OF  A  CERTAIN  SHAREHOLDERS’  AGREEMENT 
 AMONG  THE  CORPORATION  AND  THE  SHAREHOLDERS,  DATED 
 AS  OF  MAY  27,  2021,  AS  AMENDED  FROM  TIME  TO  TIME,  A 
 COPY  OF  WHICH  AGREEMENT  MAY  BE  INSPECTED  AT  THE 
 PRINCIPAL  OFFICE  OF  THE  CORPORATION,  AND  ALL  OF  THE 
 PROVISIONS  OF  WHICH  AGREEMENT  ARE  INCORPORATED  BY 
 REFERENCE IN THIS CERTIFICATE. 

 THE  SECURITIES  REPRESENTED  HEREBY  HAVE  NOT  BEEN 
 REGISTERED  UNDER  THE  SECURITIES  ACT  OF  1933,  AS 
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 AMENDED  (THE  “ACT”),  AND  MAY  NOT  BE  OFFERED,  SOLD  OR 
 OTHERWISE  TRANSFERRED,  ASSIGNED,  PLEDGED  OR 
 HYPOTHECATED  EXCEPT  IN  CERTAIN  LIMITED  CIRCUMSTANCES 
 UNLESS  AND  UNTIL  REGISTERED  UNDER  THE  ACT  OR  IF 
 REQUESTED  BY  THE  CORPORATION  UNLESS  THE  CORPORATION 
 HAS  RECEIVED  AN  OPINION  OF  COUNSEL  SATISFACTORY  TO  THE 
 COMPANY  AND  ITS  COUNSEL  THAT  SUCH  REGISTRATION  IS  NOT 
 REQUIRED. 

 (b)  AŌer endorsement, the cerƟficates  for the Shares shall be delivered to the applicable 
 Shareholders, unless, with respect to any Shareholder, such Shareholder and the CorporaƟon 
 have agreed, whether in wriƩen contract or otherwise and whether such agreement now 
 exists or is hereaŌer created, to another party holding such cerƟficate. 

 4.  IndemnificaƟon  . 

 (a)  To the extent not inconsistent with  applicable law, the CorporaƟon, its receiver, or its 
 trustee, shall indemnify each Shareholder and his, her, or its respecƟve employees, agents, 
 representaƟves, affiliates, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, against and 
 save them harmless from any claim, demand, judgment, or liability and against and from any 
 loss, cost, or expense (including, without limitaƟon, reasonable aƩorneys’ fees and court costs, 
 which may be paid by the CorporaƟon as incurred), which may be made or imposed upon such 

 persons  by  reason  of  any  (i)  act  performed  for  or  on  behalf  of  the  CorporaƟon  or  in  furtherance  of  the 
 CorporaƟon’s  business,  (ii)  inacƟon  on  the  part  of  such  persons,  or  (iii)  liabiliƟes  arising  under  federal 
 and  state  securiƟes  laws,  to  the  extent  permiƩed  by  law,  so  long  as  the  Shareholder  has  acted  in 
 furtherance  of  a  good  faith  belief  that  such  course  of  conduct  was  in  the  best  interest  of  the 
 CorporaƟon  and  said  conduct  did  not  consƟtute  gross  negligence,  gross  misconduct,  fraud,  breach  of 
 fiduciary  duty,  or  a  breach  of  this  Agreement.  It  is  the  intent  of  this  SecƟon  4(a)  that  the 
 aforemenƟoned parƟes be indemnified by the CorporaƟon to the maximum extent permiƩed by law. 

 (b)  To the extent not inconsistent with  applicable law, each Shareholder and his, her or its 
 receiver or trustee, shall indemnify the CorporaƟon and each other Shareholder and his, her or 
 its respecƟve employees, agents, representaƟves, affiliates, heirs, executors, administrators, 
 successors, and assigns, against and save them harmless from any claim, demand, judgment, or 
 liability and against and from any loss, cost, or expense (including, without limitaƟon, 
 reasonable aƩorneys’ fees and court costs, which may be paid by the CorporaƟon as incurred), 
 which may be made or imposed upon the CorporaƟon or such Shareholder by reason of any 
 acƟon or inacƟon by such Shareholder which consƟtutes gross negligence, gross misconduct, 
 fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, or a breach of this Agreement. It is the intent of this SecƟon 4(b) 
 that the aforemenƟoned parƟes be indemnified by such Shareholder to the maximum extent 
 permiƩed by law. 

 5.  ConfidenƟal InformaƟon  . 
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 (a)  At all Ɵmes while a Shareholder and thereaŌer, each Shareholder agrees to maintain in 
 strict confidence and duly safeguard any and all “ConfidenƟal InformaƟon” (as defined herein). 
 Except as authorized by the Board (which authorizaƟon must be in wriƟng), a Shareholder shall 
 not, directly or indirectly: (i) disclose, reveal or make available any ConfidenƟal InformaƟon to 
 any third party; (ii) remove any ConfidenƟal InformaƟon from the premises of the CorporaƟon, 
 intenƟonally or recklessly destroy or damage any ConfidenƟal InformaƟon, or entrust or make 
 available ConfidenƟal InformaƟon to any Person (other than the Shareholders or any officers 
 or other personnel of the CorporaƟon enƟtled to such materials by authorizaƟon of the 
 Board); or (iii) induce, influence, assist or enable any third party to take any acƟon that a party 
 would be prohibited from taking pursuant to this SecƟon 5(a). All ConfidenƟal InformaƟon is 
 and shall remain the exclusive property of the CorporaƟon. 

 (b)  For purposes of this Agreement,  “  ConfidenƟal InformaƟon  ” shall mean all informaƟon 
 of the CorporaƟon (or informaƟon of another party which the CorporaƟon has in its 
 possession) including, but not limited to, informaƟon relaƟng to the CorporaƟon’s research 
 and development acƟviƟes, source code and object code for soŌware products, computer 
 hardware, computer systems, designs, prototypes, technical specificaƟons, business and 
 markeƟng plans, pricing and cosƟng policies, contracts, projecƟons, customer and supplier 
 lists, any data relaƟng to past, present and prospecƟve customers or clients, and any and all 
 other materials and informaƟon relaƟng to or dealing with the business operaƟons or acƟviƟes 
 of the CorporaƟon, regardless of whether such informaƟon was or is transmiƩed orally, in 
 wriƟng, electronically or in whatever other form, or whether such informaƟon was or is 
 tangible or intangible or observed from observaƟon. ConfidenƟal InformaƟon shall further 
 include any supplemental informaƟon the CorporaƟon has provided to the Shareholder or may 
 provide to the Shareholder in the future, as well as informaƟon that has been or is expressly 
 designated by the CorporaƟon as “ConfidenƟal InformaƟon.” If the informaƟon disclosed was 
 or is oral, then it shall be presumed by the Shareholder to be ConfidenƟal InformaƟon. 

 6.  InformaƟon Rights  . The CorporaƟon  will furnish to each holder of Series A Preferred 
 Stock, provided that such holder of Series A Preferred Stock is not affiliated with a direct 
 compeƟtor of the CorporaƟon, (a) within one hundred twenty (120) days following the end of 
 the CorporaƟon’s fiscal year, annual unaudited financial statements of the CorporaƟon for the 
 prior fiscal year, including an unaudited balance sheet as of the end of such fiscal year, an 
 unaudited statement of operaƟons and an unaudited statement of cash flows of the 
 CorporaƟon for such year, 

 (b)  within  forty-five  (45)  days  following  the  end  of  each  fiscal  quarter,  quarterly  unaudited  financial 
 statements  for  the  prior  fiscal  quarter  of  the  CorporaƟon,  including  an  unaudited  balance  sheet,  an 
 unaudited  statement  of  operaƟons  and  an  unaudited  statement  of  cash  flows  of  the  CorporaƟon  for 
 such  fiscal  quarter,  as  well  as  a  current  capitalizaƟon  table  of  the  CorporaƟon,  (c)  within  thirty  (30) 
 days  following  the  end  of  each  calendar  month,  monthly  unaudited  financial  statements  for  the  prior 
 calendar  month  of  the  CorporaƟon,  including  an  unaudited  balance  sheet,  an  unaudited  statement  of 
 operaƟons  and  an  unaudited  statement  of  cash  flows  of  the  CorporaƟon  for  such  calendar  month,  as 
 well  as  a  current  capitalizaƟon  table  of  the  CorporaƟon,  and  (d)  no  less  than  thirty  (30)  days  prior  to 
 the  end  of  each  fiscal  year,  a  comprehensive  operaƟng  budget  forecasƟng  the  CorporaƟon’s  revenues, 
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 expenses,  and  cash  posiƟon  on  a  month-to-month  basis  for  the  upcoming  fiscal  year,  with  each  of  the 
 foregoing  prepared  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounƟng  principles  and  pracƟces,  subject 
 to  changes  resulƟng  from  normal  year-end  audit  adjustments.  If  the  CorporaƟon  has  audited  records 
 of any of the foregoing, it shall provide those in lieu of the unaudited versions. 

 7.  Piggyback RegistraƟon Rights  .  If the CorporaƟon proposes to register (including for this 
 purpose a registraƟon effected by the CorporaƟon for Shareholders other than the holders of 
 Series A Preferred Stock) any of its stock under the SecuriƟes Act in connecƟon with the public 
 offering of such securiƟes, the CorporaƟon will, at such Ɵme, promptly give each holder of 
 Series A Preferred Stock wriƩen noƟce of such registraƟon. Upon the wriƩen request of each 
 holder of Series A Preferred Stock given within twenty (20) days aŌer mailing of such noƟce by 
 the CorporaƟon, the CorporaƟon will use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause to be 
 registered under the SecuriƟes Act all of the Shares that each such holder of Series A Preferred 
 Stock has requested to be registered if any stock of the CorporaƟon is registered. The 
 CorporaƟon will have the right to terminate or withdraw any registraƟon iniƟated by it under 
 this SecƟon 7 prior to the effecƟveness of such registraƟon whether or not any holder of Series 
 A Preferred Stock has elected to include securiƟes in such registraƟon. The expenses of such 
 registraƟon will be borne by the CorporaƟon. 

 8.  AƩorneys’ Fees  . In the event  of any controversy arising under this Agreement, the 
 prevailing party in such controversy will be enƟtled to receive such party’s fees and costs, 
 including reasonable aƩorneys’ fees, from the other party or parƟes to such controversy. 

 9.  Benefit  . This Agreement shall  bind and shall inure to the benefit of the parƟes, their 
 personal representaƟves, successors and permiƩed assigns, and no other Person shall have or 
 derive any rights or benefits hereunder. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
 Agreement, the CorporaƟon may assign any of its rights hereunder, provided that the assignee 
 of such rights otherwise complies with this Agreement. 

 10.  EnƟre Agreement  . Except as otherwise  noted in this Agreement, this Agreement, 
 including the exhibit(s) hereto, consƟtutes the enƟre understanding between the parƟes and 
 supersedes any and all other agreements between the parƟes hereto with respect to the 
 subject maƩer hereof. Except as set forth herein, there are no other representaƟons or 
 covenants between 

 the parƟes with respect to the subject maƩer hereof. 

 11.  Governing Law; JurisdicƟon  . This  Agreement shall be governed by, and enforced in 
 accordance with, the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, without regard to the 
 applicaƟon of the principles of conflicts or choice of laws. The parƟes hereby consent, to the 
 fullest extent permiƩed by law, to the exclusive jurisdicƟon and venue of the state and federal 
 courts of the located within PiƩsburgh, Pennsylvania. Under no circumstances will any party 
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 assert any claim or cause of acƟon in any state or federal court outside of PiƩsburgh, 
 Pennsylvania. 

 12.  Compliance  . All parƟes agree that  they shall execute any instruments or documents 
 and they shall perform any acts which are or may become necessary to effectuate this 
 Agreement. 

 13.  NoƟces  . Any noƟce, demand or request  required or permiƩed to be given by either the 
 CorporaƟon or a Shareholder pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be in wriƟng and 
 shall be deemed given on the date and at the Ɵme delivered via personal, courier or 
 recognized overnight delivery service or, if sent via telecopier, on the date and at the Ɵme 
 telecopied with confirmaƟon of delivery or, if mailed, on the date five (5) days aŌer the date of 
 the mailing (which shall be by regular, registered or cerƟfied mail). Delivery of a noƟce by 
 telecopy (with confirmaƟon) shall be permiƩed and shall be considered delivery of a noƟce 
 notwithstanding that it is not an original that is received. If directed to a Shareholder, any such 
 noƟce, demand or request shall be sent to the address indicated on the signature page of this 
 Agreement, or to such other address as the Shareholder may hereaŌer specify in wriƟng. If 
 directed to the CorporaƟon, any such noƟce, demand or request shall be sent to the 
 CorporaƟon’s principal execuƟve office, c/o the CorporaƟon’s President, or to such other 
 address or person as the CorporaƟon may hereaŌer specify in wriƟng. 

 14.  Counterparts; Facsimiles  . This Agreement  may be executed in any number of 
 counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original as against any party whose 
 signature appears thereon, and all of which shall together consƟtute one and the same 
 instrument. Any facsimile signature of any party hereto or to any other agreement or 
 document executed in connecƟon herewith shall consƟtute a legal, valid and binding execuƟon 
 by such party. 

 15.  Severability  . If any provision of  this Agreement shall be held invalid by a court of 
 competent jurisdicƟon, then this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid provision were 
 omiƩed, without affecƟng any other provisions of this Agreement. 

 16.  SecƟon Headings  . The SecƟon headings  in this Agreement are for convenience only; 
 they form no part of this Agreement and shall not affect its interpretaƟon. 

 17.  Number and Gender  . Words used herein,  regardless of the number and gender 
 specifically used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other number, singular or 
 plural, and any other gender, masculine, feminine or neuter, as the context indicates is 
 appropriate. 

 18.  Number of Days  . In compuƟng the  number of days for purposes of this Agreement, all 
 days shall be counted, including Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, provided that if the final day 
 of any Ɵme period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday on which federal banks are or may 
 elect to be closed, then the final day shall be deemed to be the next day which is not a 
 Saturday, Sunday or such holiday. 
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 19.  ConstrucƟon  . All parƟes have been given an opportunity to carefully review this 
 Agreement (and, if desired, consult with their own legal, tax or other professionals) prior to 
 signing the Agreement. Accordingly, to the fullest extent permiƩed by law, none of the 
 parƟes hereto shall be construed as the draŌing party against whom the Agreement could be 
 construed. 

 20.  Amendment; Waiver  . The parƟes hereto  may terminate this Agreement or amend or 
 waive any provision of this Agreement if the CorporaƟon and Shareholders owning at least 
 seventy- five percent (75%) of the outstanding Shares consent to such terminaƟon, 
 amendment or waiver, provided that  Exhibit A  aƩached  hereto may be amended by the 
 CorporaƟon at any Ɵme or from Ɵme to Ɵme to accurately reflect the holdings of Shares by the 
 Shareholders. 
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To the Management of 
PBV Holdings, Inc. D/B/A Velum Fermentation 
Philadelphia, PA 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of PBV Holdings, Inc. D/B/A Velum 
Fermentation (a corporation), which comprise the balance sheet as of September 30, 2022, and the related 
statements of operations and accumulated deficit and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management�s financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountants� Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for 
reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial 
statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion. 

We are required to be independent of PBV Holdings, Inc. D/B/A Velum Fermentation and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our review. 
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Accountants� Conclusion 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

 

 

Wilke CPAs & Advisors 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 

November 23, 2022 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  $          16,980 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS              16,980 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Construction in progress 2,252,650

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT         2,252,650 

OTHER ASSETS
Intangible asset                2,540 
Right of use asset         1,102,067 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS         1,104,607 

TOTAL ASSETS  $     3,374,237 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable  $        172,475 
Retention claim payable              64,645 
Line of credit - short term         1,056,522 
Operating lease liability - short term            154,658 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,448,300

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Line of credit - long term            375,000 
Operating lease liability - long term 1,065,079

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 1,440,079

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock: no par value; 1,500,000 authorized; no shares 
    issued and outstanding
Preferred stock: no par value; 500,00 shares authorized; 
    272,500 shares issued and outstanding                1,000 
Additional paid-in-capital         1,509,000 
Accumulated deficit       (1,024,142)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 485,858

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  $     3,374,237 

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VELUM FERMENTATION
BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022



OPERATING EXPENSES

Rent 142,374$          
Supplies and equipment 28,930              
Taxes 24,726              
Professional services 6,943                
Insurance 6,135                
Office expense 2,792                
Bank fees 611                   
Repairs and maintenance 246                   

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 212,757            

OTHER EXPENSES

Interest expense 40,994              

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 40,994              

NET LOSS (253,751)          

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - JANUARY 1 (770,391)          

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - SEPTEMBER 30 (1,024,142)$     

PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss (253,751)$      
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used by operating activities
(Increase) decrease in:

Deposits
Accounts payable (243,416)        
Retention claim payable (5,304)            
Adjustment to retained earnings 7,187             

NET CASH USED  BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (495,284)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction in progress (652,850)        

NET CASH  USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (652,850)        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lines of credit 1,003,395      
Capital contributions 160,401         

NET CASH  PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,163,796      

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15,662           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,318             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR 16,980$         

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for interest 40,994$         

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

VELUM FERMENTATION
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PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A 
 VELUM FERMENTATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

 
NOTE A � ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

 
PBV Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Velum Fermentation is a Pennsylvania corporation established on January 28, 
2021. The Company is located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.    

 
PBV Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Velum Fermentation is governed by its Shareholders� Agreement dated May 27, 
2021. 

 
PBV Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Velum Fermentation, referred to as �The Company� is engaged in the brewing 
and selling of a wide variety of fermented products and operating an entertainment facility . The Company 
has begun operations but has not generated revenues. Activities to date have been organizational activities 
including the renovation of their brewery, developing products, establishing sales channels and raising 
capital. 

 

NOTE B � SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting: 

The Company�s policy is to prepare its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America using the accrual basis of accounting.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash includes currency on hand and demand deposits with financial institutions.  Cash equivalents are 
short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with a stated maturity 
of three months or less. 

Fair Value Measurements:The carrying values of financial instruments that are current assets or current 
liabilities are reasonable estimates of the fair value given its short-term nature.   

Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
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PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A  
VELUM FERMENTATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

NOTE B � SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Revenue Recognition: 

The Company�s revenue recognition policy  follows the new accounting standard update 2014-09 (topic 
606). The core principle of Topic 606 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of 
goods and services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration of which the entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for these goods and services. Revenues streams are identified for this purpose;  as 
product sale, service installation and service maintenance.    

New Accounting Pronouncements: 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02 which became ASC Topic 842, Leases. The principle 
of Topic 842 is that an entity should recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and 
disclose key information about leasing transactions.  The effective date for implementation of this standard 
is January 1, 2022.  The Company adopted the new standard as of January 1, 2022. 

Income Taxes: 
PBV Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Velum Fermentation. is a C corporation under the Federal and Pennsylvania 
revenue codes.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually for differences between 
the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities as well as timing differences in recognition of 
revenues and expenses that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on enacted tax 
laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. The 
Company uses the accrual method of accounting for financial statement and tax purposes where revenues 
and expenses are recognized when earned or a liability incurred.  Valuation allowances are established 
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. Income tax expense is 
the tax payable or refundable for the period plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets 
and liabilities. 

NOTE C � CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

The Company has construction in progress consisting of leasehold improvements, machinery, furniture and 
fixtures. The Company estimates that construction will be completed within one year of the financial 
statements date. The Company will start recording depreciation expense once the assets are placed in 
service. 

 
NOTE D � LINE-OF-CREDIT 
 
In July 2021, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution for an interest only 
line-of-credit of $1,200,000 with an annual interest rate of 6%. The outstanding balance on the LOC was 
$1,056,522 as of September 30, 2022. For the nine months ended September 30, 2022, the total amount of 
interest incurred on the note was $40,994. The loan is secured by all assets of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________
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PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A  
VELUM FERMENTATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

NOTE D � LINE-OF-CREDIT (CONTINUED) 

In September 2022, the Company entered into a loan agreement with one of the Company�s shareholders 
for an line-of-credit for up to $500,000 with an annual interest rate of 15%. The outstanding balance on the 
note was $375,000 as of September 30, 2022. For the nine months ended September 30, 2022, the total amount 
of interest incurred on the note was $0. The principal and interest are due the earlier of the seventh 
anniversary of the date upon which the note was purchased, or the sale of all or substantially all of the 
capital stock or assets of the Company. The loan is secured by all assets of the Company. 

NOTE E � LEASING ACTIVITIES 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02 which became Topic 842, Leases. The principle of 
Topic 842 is that an entity should recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and 
disclose key information about leasing transactions.  

The Company has entered into a written agreement to lease a facility. The Company leases a brewing 
facility located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. The lease term expires in July 2029. This operating lease 
provides for a renewal option at its fair rental value at the time of renewal. In the normal course of business, 
operating leases are generally renewed or replaced by new leases. As of September 30, 2022, the right-of-
use (ROU) asset has a balance of $1,102,067 as shown in other assets on the balance sheet; the lease liability 
is included in current liabilities ($154,658) and long-term liabilities ($1,065,079). The lease asset and 
liability were calculated utilizing the risk-free discount rate (2.21%), according to the Company�s elected 
policy.  The remaining lease term as of September 30, 2022 is approximately 7 years.  

The maturity of the operating lease liability as of September 30, 2022 was as follows:  

Year Ended December 31,  Amount 

2022 $ 45,062

2023  180,250

2024  185,354

2025  192,500

2026  192,500

Thereafter  523,406

Total lease payments     1,319,072 

Less: interest  (99,335) 

Present value of operating lease liability $ 1,219,737 



PBV HOLDINGS, INC. D/B/A  
VELUM FERMENTATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

NOTE F  � DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10-25-6 Income Taxes, Basic Recognition Threshold, 
which provides guidance for how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, presented and 
disclosed in the financial statements. FASB ASC 740-10-25-6 requires the evaluation of tax positions taken by 
The Company and to determine whether tax positions are �more-likely-than-not� of being sustained by the 
applicable tax authority. As of September 30, 2022, no tax position taken by the Company would be subject to 
this provision.  

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal, and various state and local jurisdictions. There is no 
open tax year for filing purposes. 

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10-15-2 and 15-3 Income Taxes, which states that 
deferred income taxes should be measured by using the enacted federal tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
income in the periods in which the net operating losses increased or decreased. 

Based on historical levels of the Company�s taxable income, the rate of income tax selected in determining the 
federal and state benefit was 21% and 8%. 

At September 30, 2022 the Company has generated deferred income tax assets as disclosed below: 

NOTE G  � SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events and determined there are no subsequent events necessary for 
disclosure as of the date of the independent accountants� review report. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________
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Long-Tenn 

Cm:rent Deferred TotaJ 

Federal $ $ 53,,2&8, $ 53,288 

State 20,300 20,300 

Vaiuarion allowance ( 3,5&8) (73,588) 

$ $ $ 
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 EXHIBIT D – OFFICER CERTIFICATE 

 I cer�fy that the financial statements included in this Form C are true and complete in all material 
 respects. I cer�fy that all statements of fact and tax return informa�on included in this Form C are 
 accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge. 
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Nale H dalt9'1U1A. 

Nathan McLaughl in 

PBV Holdings line 


